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Addendum to RFP 16-0081 
Strategic Planning for Cape Fear Museum 

 

 Is there a budget (not-to-exceed or other)/defined budget for this project?  On p. 4 of the RFP it states under 
“evaluation factors, a “Willingness to meet time and budget requirements”. 

 
The estimated budget for this project is $134,000. 

 

 In reviewing the attached “Professional Services Agreement” #16-0081 Draft, #2 on p. 1 states that payment 
would be “upon full performance”.  Is there flexibility in this?  For example, we typically require a deposit for 
our work to be credited towards our final invoices and progress payments on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
Yes. A payment schedule based on an agreed-upon set of benchmarks will be negotiated with the selected 
contractor. The contract will be amended to include the payment schedule. 

 

 Also in the Draft agreement, on p. 2 under #7 it states the minimum scope and limits of insurance.  Under 
7.1.1, our CGL is $1 million and general aggregate is $2 million; under 7.2.2. our policy is $1 million; under 
7.3.1 our policy is for $1 million; and under 7.4.1 our policy is for $1 million.  Do we have to meet the terms 
outlined in the draft agreement, which indicates $5 million each for these insurance requirements? 

 
After review, New Hanover County will accept these lower minimums for the project. The final contract will be 
amended to reflect these changes. 

 

 With regard to the ’strong public participation component’ (page 2), will the museum organize focus groups 
and public forums, or will the contractor bear that responsibility? 

 
The contractor would bear the responsibility for organizing most public participation components such as focus 
groups, forums, surveys, etc. Depending on what components are chosen, the Cape Fear Museum (CFM) staff 
may assist. CFM staff and its boards will work with the contractor to provide contacts for stakeholder 
groups/individuals necessary to fulfill this mandate. 

 

 Is the ‘strategic planning committee' (page 4) that will review proposals the same group that will work with 
the selected contractor? How many members does the committee have? 

 
The strategic planning selection committee will be comprised of 10-12 members from CFM staff, its two boards 
and county management.  While all members of the selection committee will be involved in some aspects of the 
planning process, there will be a core team of 4-6 members who will be working closely with the selected 
contractor throughout the project. 

 

 How many RFPs were distributed?  Can we get a list of the firms the RFP was sent to? 
 

The RFP is posted publicly and open to any contractor who wishes to apply.  
http://www.nhcgov.com/business-nhc/bids/    
The RFP was sent to the following companies/consultants: 
Anne Bergeron & Co. Consulting 
CB Services 
Chora Creative       
ConsultEcon, Inc. 
David Ellis 
Howard + Revis Design Services 
Lead By Design 

http://www.nhcgov.com/business-nhc/bids/
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Lord Cultural Resources 
MEM & Associates   
Morey Group     
PRD Group       
Reach Advisors   
Roberts Consulting 
Marsha Semmel Consulting  
Beverly Sheppard    
White Oak Associates 
 

 Are you currently using a particular Balanced Score Card software?  
 
No  
 

 Does the staff use strategy maps currently to track progress on strategic goals?    
 
As a New Hanover County Department, CFM utilizes the county’s strategy map when developing annual goals 
and performance indicators, but does not have strategy maps developed specifically for internal use.  
NHC strategy map: http://www.nhcgov.com/administration/our-vision/   
One of the goals of this project is to “provide acceptable recommendations and implementation strategies for 
this plan, including a visual representation of the plan and strategic steps in a simple, visual format (balanced 
scorecard-based strategy map).” 
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